
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/08/2019 • Last updated: 07/23/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 4 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 11/2014 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 07/2019 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 7 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of Capital Preparatory Schools is to provide historically disadvantaged students with the 

college and career readiness skills needed to become responsible and engaged citizens for social justice. 

Capital Prep strives to ensure that all students are able to do so by offering a rigorous college 

preparatory curriculum, an eclectic variety of athletic programs, as well as a Gifted & Talented program 

for students who demonstrate extraordinary academic achievement. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 Learner Expectations: Our Learner Expectations shapes
students as Collaborators, Pillars of Knowledge, Researchers,
Empathic Citizens, and Problem Solvers (CPREP). Learner
Expectations are integrated in the curriculum throughout the
school year, with an explicit focus on one Learner
Expectation in each marking period. 

Variable 2 College and Career Readiness: We achieve the goal of
securing student mastery of NYS CCLS skills and knowledge
in the academic realm through our year round, college
preparatory curricular program, utilizing innovative teaching
strategies and meaningful extra curricular activities. 

Variable 3 Affective Development: We ensure our students’ mastery of
NYS CCLS skills and knowledge in the affective realm
through the development of key relationships between staff
and students through our Advisory system and our college
readiness program. 

Variable 4 Student Support Services: We ensure student mastery of NYS
CCLS skills and knowledge through the development of key
academic competencies among at risk students, students
with disabilities (SWD) and English Language Learners (ELLs)
through the use of our Response to Intervention (RTI)
framework and academic behavioral plans, Positive
Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS), facilitated by
our Student Assistance Team (SAT). 
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Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

Professional Development: Critical to ensuring student
mastery of NYS CCLS skills and knowledge is the
development of our staff’s key competencies. The Capital
Prep model supports this by creating a nurturing
environment for teachers designed to foster relationships
with students and colleagues alike. Colleagues are
encouraged to collaborate to develop a compelling
academic, social and professional climate and culture
through the school’s Professional Learning Communities
(PLCs), as well as subject area department meetings focused
on curricular development. Simultaneously, each faculty
member receives opportunities for growth and mentoring
through the use of Individualized Teacher Plans as well as the
school’s Creativity Symposium in which teachers present
data from an action research project they have undertaken
that year. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

https://www.capitalprepharlem.org/ 

400 

273 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served 6, 7, 8, 9 
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l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT Yes 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

l2. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS 

NAME OF CMO/EMO 

PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 

Capital Prep Schools 

777 Main Street 

CITY 

STATE 

Bridgeport 

CT 

ZIP CODE 06604 

EMAIL ADDRESS 

CONTACT PERSON NAME Kashani Stokley 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades Served 
at Site (K 5, 6 9,
etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

1 E 104th Street 
Capital

Site 1 Preparatory 212 328 9370 NYC CSD 4 6 9 6 9 
Harlem Charter 
School 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Reginald Richardson 

Rachelly Crime 

Kashani Stokley 

Rachelly Crime 

Jermaine Ottey 

Kashani Stokley 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Co located Space 

m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school Is school 
will leave 
current co

working with
NYCDOE to 

location expand into 
current 
space? 

Site 1 N/A No 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school If so, list the School at Full 
working with proposed Capacity at
NYCDOE to space and Site 
move to year planned
separate for move 
space? 

No No 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/101590665/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Change in School1 Name 

2 

3 

4 

5 

More revisions to add? No 

ATTESTATION 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 
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o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Kashani Stokley 

Position Director of Network Operations 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

No Responses Selected 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/23 

Thank you. 
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Page 1 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Manhattan 

1 EAST  104 STREET Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 1051499 

Block Number: 01610 

Lot Number(s): 1 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Certificate Type: Temporary 

Effective Date: 07/10/2019 

Expiration Date: 10/08/2019 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1 (Prior to 1968 Code) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: G (1968 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 

No. of stories: 7 Height in feet: 73  No. of dwelling units: 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Standpipe system, Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy: 

There are 25 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail. 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

  
  

 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

Floor 
From To 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group Description of use 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations. 

BAS OG232 3 CLASSROOMS, RECEIVING ROOM, 
MECHANICAL ROOMS, OFFICES AND 
STORAGE 

E 

BAS 17 DAYCARE 

ME 
Z 

100206 3 THEATER BALCONY F-1B 

001 75654 3 MUSEUM GALLERIES F-3 

001 751 3 CURATORIAL STORAGE E 

001 7525 3 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ROOMS AND 
OFFICES 

001 100461 3 THEATER AUDITORIUM 

001 60299 3 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM F-2 
F-3 

002 75139 3 OFFICES AND LOUNGE E 

003 40186 3 CLASSROOMS F-1A 

003 4098 3 OFFICES E 

003 4074 3 THEATER 

004 40365 4 CLASSROOMS (KINDERGARTEN) G 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

      
    

  

Page 3 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

004 200 40 F-4 3 CAFETERIA 

004 3 40 E 4 OFFICES 

005 116 40 G 4 CLASSROOMS 

005 116 40 E 4 OFFICES 

005 292 75 F-3 4 GYMNASIUM, LOWER POOL 

006 298 100 F-3 4 SWIMMING POOL, FITNESS ROOM, LOUNGE ( 
ACCESSORY TO POOL) 

006 232 100 F-3 3 CLASSROOMS 

006 18 40 E 4 OFFICES 

007 55 40 E 4 CLASSROOM AND MECHANICAL EQUIPMEMT 
F-1B ROOMS 

PT1 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ROOMS 

PT2 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT ROOMS 

NOTE: THEATER SHALL NOT BE USED OR OPERATED AS A COMMERCIAL OR PUBLIC ENTER PRISE AND ONLY AS ACCESSORY 
USE TO A PHILANTHROPIC INSTITUTE  NOTE : THEATER SHALL NOT BE USED OR OPERATED AS A COMMERCIAL OR PUBLIC ENT 
RPRISE AND ONLY AS ACCESSORY USE TO A PHILANTHROPIC INSTITUTE COURTYARD NON-SIMULTANEOUS USE WITH THEATER 
(550PP F-4, 365PP F-2) 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT  7/10/2019 2:15:02 PM 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/22/2019 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000084243&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&section_1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMc 

omposite=1&EMgrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMp 

rogress=1&EMchronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1& 

38ELA=1&38MATH=1&nyseslat=1&feddata=1 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	

	
	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 07/25/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

1. Advanced math 
course for 
students that utilizes 
adaptive software in
order to differentiate 
instruction. 
2. Integration of
middle school wide 
intervention block 
focused on using
adaptive software
and researched 
based strategies to
support reading
remediation. 
3. Mandatory
Saturday school for
lowest 15% to 
support remediation
in all core subject
areas, offering 1:2
tutor student 
support.
4. Targeted daily after
school tutoring with
our academic dean 
and lead teachers 

1 / 14 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	

	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

1 

5. All history courses
have a joint focus on

Each year, at least ELA content and RI 
75% of students in standards. 
Grade 7 and 75% of 6. Students will 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

students in Grade 8 
continuously enrolled
at Capital Prep
Harlem for two BEDS 
dates will score at 
least a Level 3 on 
NYS ELA test. 

Each year, at least
75% of students in 
Grade 7 and 75% of 
students in Grade 8 
continuously enrolled
at Capital Prep
Harlem for two BEDS 
dates will score at 
least a Level 3 on the 
NYS Math test. 

NYS ELA exam Not Met 
present student led
conferences which 
will focus on areas of 
academic growth in
core subject areas.
7. Special education
teachers offering
targeted tutoring.
8. School wide 
professional
development each
Friday, in addition to
2 weeks of 
professional prior to
the start of the 
school year and 3
CMO support days.
9. Continued 
implementation of
engage NY
curriculum. 
10. Continued 
administration of 
interim assessment 
to effectively
progress monitor
instruction. 
11. Integration of 4
directors of 
curriculum to support
math, history,
science and ELA 
instruction. 
12. Integration of
instructional coaches 
to support teaching
and learning. 

Please see our 
NYS Math exam Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

2 / 14 
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3 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, at least
75% of all 
accountability
subgroups in Grade 7
and 75% of all 
accountability
subgroups in Grade 8
NYS ELA exam 
continuously enrolled
at Capital Prep
Harlem for at least 
two BEDS dates will 
score at least a Level 
3 on the NYS ELA 
test. 

Each year, at least
75% of all 
accountability
subgroups in Grade 7
and 75% of all 
accountability
subgroups in Grade 8
NYS Math exams 
continuously enrolled
at Capital Prep
Harlem for at least 
two BEDS dates will 
score at least a Level 
3 on the NYS Math 
test. 

Each year, the
schools aggregate
Performance Level 
Index (PLI) for all
student on the NYS 
ELA exam and NYS 
Math exam will meet 
the respective
Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) set
forth in the state's 
NCLB accountability 
system. 

Each year, the
school's aggregate
Performance Level 
Index (PLI) for all
Accountability
Subgroups on the
NYS ELA exam will 

Please see our 
NYS ELA exam Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

Please see our 
NYS Math exam Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

NYS ELA and Math 
exams 2017 2019 AMO data 

unavailable 

NYS ELA exams 
2017 2019 AMO data 

3 / 14 



	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

6 meet the respective
Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) set
forth in the state's 
NCLB accountability 
system. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, the
school's aggregate
Performance Level 
Index (PLI) for all
Accountability
Subgroups on the
NYS Math exam will 
meet the respective
Annual Measurable 
Objective (AMO) set
forth in the state's 
NCLB accountability 
system. 

Each year, the
percentage of all
Capital Prep Harlem
Accountability
Subgroups who score
at least a Level 3 on 
the Grade 6 8 NYS 
ELA and Math 
assessments will 
exceed the 
performance of the
CSD 4 Accountability
Subgroups on these 
assessments. 

Each year, the
percentage of Capital
Prep Harlem students
who score at least a 
Level 3 on the Grade 
6 8 NYS ELA 
assessments will 
exceed the percent
of student in CSD 4 
who score a level 3 
on these 
assessments. 

unavailable 

NYS Math exams 2017 2019 AMO data 
unavailable 

NYS ELA and Math Please see our 
exams Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

CPH did exceed CSD 
NYS ELA Exam Not Met 4 in ELA in 2018, and 

matched it in 2017. 

Each year, the
percentage of Capital
Prep Harlem students
who score at least a 

4 / 14 
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10 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Level 3 on the Grade 
6 8 NYS Math 
assessments will 
exceed the percent
of student in CSD 4 
who score a level 3 
on these 
assessments. 

Please see our 
NYS Math exam Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

2. Do have more academic goals Yes 

to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Toward Attainment of Take 
Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
11 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, the school
will exceed it's 
predicted level of
performance on the
NYS ELA exam by a
size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher
than the expected to
a small degree)
according to a
regression analysis
controlling for
student 
characteristics 
among all public
schools in New York 
State. 

Each year, the school
will exceed it's 
predicted level of
performance on the
NYS Math exam by a
size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher
than the expected to
a small degree)
according to a
regression analysis
controlling for
student 
characteristics 
among all public 

Please see our 
NYS ELA exams Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

Please see our 
NYS Math exams Not Met response to academic

goal 1 

5 / 14 
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13 

schools in New York 
State. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, the
unadjusted Mean
Growth Percentile 
(MPG) for all students
on the NYS ELA and 
Math assessments 
will exceed the state 
average. 

NYS ELA and Math Not Met exams 

Please see our 
response to academic
goal 1 

Academ 
ic Goal 
14 

Academ 
ic Goal 
15 

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, the
unadjusted MGP for
all accountability
subgroups on the
NYS ELA and Math 
assessments will 
exceed the state 
average. 

Each year, at least
70% of Grade 8 
students will pass a
course and a related 
Regents exam that
entitles them to high
school credit. 

At least 75% of 
Grade 12 students 
will have earned 15 
or more college
credits by the time
they graduate high
school. 

At least 95% of 
students in each 
grade served will
earn an overall 
"proficient" rating in
their end of year
Student Led 
Conference 
presentation based
on a established 
rubric. 

Please see our NYS ELA and Math Not Met response to academicexams goal 1 

Regents exam scores 

No students N/A 
registered for this 
exam 

School records N/A 

School records Met 

Each year, at least
65% of students in 

Academ 
the HSAC will score 
at least a 75% on the 

English regents 
exams 

ic Goal NYS Comprehensive N/A 

6 / 14 
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18 English Regents We do not currently
Exam by the end of have 4 years of data. 
their fourth year in
the cohort. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

Each year, at least
65% of students in 
the HSAC will score 
at least a 75% on the 
NYS Mathematics 
Regents Exam
(Integrated Algebra,
Algebra
2/Trigonometry,
Geometry,
Mathematics A or 
Mathematics B) by
the end of their 
fourth year in the
cohort. 

Each year, at least
65% of students in 
the HSAC will score 
at least a 75% on the 
NYS Science Regents
Exam by the end of
their fourth year in
the cohort. 

Math Regents exams 

We do not currently N/A 

have 4 years of data. 

Science Regents 

N/A We do not currently
have 4 years of data. 

3. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

Yes 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, at least
65% of students in 
the HSAC will score 
at least a 75% on the 
NYS Global History
and Geography
Regents Exam and
on the United States 
History and
Government Regents
Exam by the end of 

History Regents 

N/A We do not currently
have 4 years of data. 

7 / 14 
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22 

their fourth year in
the cohort. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
23 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, the
Accountability
Performance Level 
(APL) on the Regents
Comprehensive
English exam and a
Regents Mathematics
exam, respectively,
of students 
completing their
fourth year in the
Accountability Cohort
will meet the Annual 
Measurable Objective
(AMO) set forth in the
state's accountability 
system. 

Each year, the
percent of students
in the high school
Total Cohort passing
the required NYS
Regents Exams
(Comprehensive
English, one
Mathematics, one 
Science, Global 
History & Geography
and United States 
History &
Government) with at
least a 75 will exceed 
that of the high
school Total Cohort 
from the district. 

Each year, 75% of
students in first and 
second year High
School Total 
Graduation Cohorts 
(HSTGC) will have
earned at least five 
credits each year of
the 22 credits 
needed for 
graduation. 

Regents exams 
scores 

N/A 
We do not currently
have 4 years of data. 

Regents exams 
scores 

Data unavailable at 
this time 

School records 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Each year, 75% of Regents exams 

8 / 14 
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25 

26 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
27 

Academ 
ic Goal 
28 

Academ 
ic Goal 
29 

Academ 
ic Goal 

students in the 
second year HSTGC
will score at least 
three different NYS 
Regents exams
require for
graduation. 

Each year, 75% of
the students in the 
fourth year HSTGC
and 95% of students 
in the fifth year
HSTGC will graduate. 

Each year, 60% of
graduating 12th
graders will graduate
with a New York State 
Regents Diploma
with Advanced 
Designation. 

Each year, the
percent of students
in the HSTGC 
graduating after
completion of their
fourth year will
exceed Total 
Graduation Cohort 
from local school 
districts 

Each year, 100% of
11th graders will
prepare for and take
the SAT 

Each year, 100% of
the 12th graders will
complete at least
seven college
applications. 

scores 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Schools records 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Regents exams 
scores 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Graduation rates 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

School records 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

School records 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

College acceptance 
Each year, 100% of rates 
the Capital Prep 

9 / 14 
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31 

Academ graduates will be
ic Goal Not applicable. 

colleges or
universities 

accepted to four year

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Under New York 
State's accountability
plan, Capital Prep
Harlem will be in 

Academ "Good Standing" and
ic Goal achieve its federal 
32 Adequate Yearly

Progress (AYP)
targets for all
accountability
subgroups. 

Each year, 100% of
high school students,Academ who are not excused ic Goal from participating,33 will participate in two
sports annually. 

Each year, 100% of
the students will 

Academ participate in at least
ic Goal three hours of 
34 approved community

service per semester
through 

Each year, 100% of
the 12th graders will
complete
Senior Social Justice 
Capstone Project,
which will require
students to plan,

Academ organize and
ic Goal implement an action

plan related to a
social injustice, as
evidenced by
achieving a rating of
“meets expectation”
in each area of the 
presentation rubric 

Not Met 

School records Met 

Schools records Met 

School records 

Not applicable. 

CPH was grades 6 9
in 18 19 the school 
year 

Academ 
ic Goal 
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35 



	 	

	

	

	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	 	

36 

Academ 
ic Goal 
37 

Academ 
ic Goal 
38 

Academ 
ic Goal 
39 

Academ 
ic Goal 
40 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Org
Goal 1 

All CPH students in 
grades 6 8 will
demonstrate 
improvement in
their reading skills
from the Fall 2019 
to Spring 2019 

NWEA MAP data 
99% achieved the 
goal 

Not Met 

Org
Goal 2 

All CPH students in 
grades 6 and 7 will
demonstrate 
improvement in
their math skills 
from the Fall of '18 
to the Spring of
'19 

NWEA Map data
99% achieved the 
goal 

Not Met 

Org
Goal 3 

Students of CPH 
will focus on the 
global community
in which they live
and will give back
to through
international 
community service
projects. 

School records and 
reflections 

Met 

11 / 14 

While 98 out of 109 
students did achieve 
this goal we will
continue to execute 
strategies outlined in
academic goal one to
improve student
achievement 

While 103 out of 109 
sutdents did achieve 
this goal we will
continue to execute 
strategies outlined in
academic goal one to
improve student
achievement 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	
	

	
	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Org
Goal 4 

By Spring of '18
students at CPH 
will consistently
demonstrate 
behavior that 
represent CPREP
(collaborator,
problem solver,
researcher, pillar
of knowledge and
empathetic
citizen) thus
producing a safe
school climate as 
assessed by a
variety of school 
measurement 
tools such as 
positive referrals,
discipline and
attendance 
records and 
surveys. 

Schools records Met 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org 
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Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational (No response) 
goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals (No response) 
to add? 

13 / 14 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	

	

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Financia 
l Goal 6 

Financia 
l Goal 7 

Financia 
l Goal 8 

Financia 
l Goal 9 

Financia 
l Goal 
10 

Thank you. 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 6128751 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 287 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 21355 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

403778 

399419 

803197 

2799 

2 / 2 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 
and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910 I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
    

   
     

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

   
 

   
   

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a 
change in the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial 
statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 22, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 



  

                      

               

                      

  

  

                  

                  

                

                  

                

  

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Statements of Financial Position 

2019 
June 30, 

2018 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

$ 1,125,432 $ 655,630 
33,071 221,709 
13,052 35,545 

1,171,555 912,884 

Property and equipment, net 
Restricted cash 

682,085 
75,000 

728,452 
23,344 

$ 1,928,640 $ 1,664,680 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Refundable advances 
Due to related party 

Total Current Liabilities 

Deferred rent 

Total Liabilities 

Net assets, without donor restrictions 

$ 141,847 $ 271,058 
252,695 71,175 
134,613 114,293 

529,155 456,526 

435,858 541,781 

965,013 998,307 

963,627 666,373 

$ 1,928,640 $ 1,664,680 

See notes to financial statements 
3 



  

                      

            

            
            

            

                  
                          

            

                   

                    
                             

                  

                  

                  

  

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Statements of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Operating Revenue 

General education 
Special education 
Lease assistance 

Federal grants 
State and city grants 

Total Operating Revenue 

$ 4,538,174 $ 3,373,824 
137,054 455,466 

1,314,677 741,821 
249,935 213,063 
30,421 18,594 

6,270,261 4,802,768 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 
Special education 

Total Program Services 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

3,879,000 
1,848,425 

5,727,425 

399,419 
1,907 

6,128,751 

3,029,454 
1,386,758 

4,416,212 

407,196 
2,411 

4,825,819 

Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 141,510 (23,051) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

Grants and contributions 
Rental income 

Total Support and Other Revenue 

155,744 
-

155,744 

24,261 
333,115 

357,376 

Change in Net Assets 297,254 334,325 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 666,373 332,048 

End of year $ 963,627 $ 666,373 

See notes to financial statements 
4 



      
                                                    
                                                                  

                                

                                              
                                                             
                                                   
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                         
                                        
                                                     
                                                         
                                                                      
                                                               
                                                            
                                                                 
                                                                         
                                                     
                                                                      
                                                                    
                                                       
                                                    
                                                                   

      

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Services Supporting Services 
No. of Regular Special Management 

Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total 
Personnel Services Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 5 $ 318,462 $ 85,316 $ 403,778 $ 117,511 $ 1,050 $ 522,339 
Instructional personnel 28 1,089,618 653,350 1,742,968 - - 1,742,968 
Non-instructional personnel 2 61,533 16,745 78,278

 -

-

78,278 

Total Salaries and Staff 35 1,469,613 755,411 2,225,024 117,511 1,050 2,343,585 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 402,461 206,873 609,334 32,182 287 641,803 
Retirement 13,020 6,692 19,712 1,042 9 20,763 
Management company fees 412,132 149,296 561,428 65,866 - 627,294 
Legal services - - - 47,640 - 47,640 
Accounting/audit services - - - 28,363 - 28,363 
Other purchased/professional/consulting services 192,528 51,761 244,289 279 2 244,570 
Building and land rent/lease 789,793 439,005 1,228,798 64,282 392 1,293,472 
Repairs and maintenance 73,288 40,737 114,025 5,965 36 120,026 
Insurance 29,737 16,529 46,266 2,421 15 48,702 
Utilities 5,182 1,782 6,964 482 1 7,447 
Supplies/materials 109,950 29,935 139,885 - - 139,885 
Equipment/furnishings 39,136 10,655 49,791 2,718 - 52,509 
Staff development 11,520 3,135 14,655 174 - 14,829 
Marketing/recruitment 6,258 1,761 8,019 19 - 8,038 
Technology 80,092 41,169 121,261 6,405 57 127,723 
Food services 18,880 5,138 24,018 - - 24,018 
Student services 40,570 11,040 51,610 - - 51,610 
Office expense 27,654 14,215 41,869 12,849 20 54,738 
Depreciation and amortization 151,133 61,644 212,777 9,757 38 222,572 
Other expenses 6,053 1,647 7,700 1,464

 -

9,164 

Total Expenses $ 3,879,000 $ 1,848,425 $ 5,727,425 $ 399,419 $ 1,907 $ 6,128,751 

See notes to financial statements 
5 



      
                                                       
                                                                      

                                   

                                              
                                                           
                                                   
                                                                                        
                                                                                        
                                                         
                                        
                                                         
                                                         
                                                                      
                                                               
                                                             
                                                              
                                                                
                                                         
                                                                      
                                                                    
                                                             
                                                     
                                                               

      

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Program Services Supporting Services 
No. of Regular Special Management 

Positions Education Education Total and General Fundraising Total 
Personnel Services Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 4 $ 229,274 $ 61,518 $ 290,792 $ 118,384 $ 1,090 $ 410,266 
Instructional personnel 20 749,044 444,066 1,193,110 - - 1,193,110 
Non-instructional personnel 1 9,126 2,513 11,639

 -

-

11,639 

Total Salaries and Staff 25 987,444 508,097 1,495,541 118,384 1,090 1,615,015 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 274,187 141,086 415,273 32,874 303 448,450 
Retirement 12,574 6,470 19,044 1,509 14 20,567 
Management company fees 313,674 113,629 427,303 50,131 - 477,434 
Legal services - - - 43,574 - 43,574 
Accounting/audit services - - - 23,292 - 23,292 
Other purchased/professional/consulting services 201,671 43,351 245,022 276 3 245,301 
Building and land rent/lease 749,713 385,772 1,135,485 89,881 828 1,226,194 
Repairs and maintenance 60,326 31,041 91,367 7,234 67 98,668 
Insurance 21,884 11,261 33,145 2,624 24 35,793 
Utilities 5,532 1,937 7,469 572 2 8,043 
Supplies/materials 124,657 34,171 158,828 - - 158,828 
Equipment/furnishings 11,718 3,533 15,251 1,764 1 17,016 
Staff development 12,810 3,512 16,322 1,739 - 18,061 
Marketing/recruitment 10,928 4,747 15,675 859 8 16,542 
Technology 56,322 28,981 85,303 6,755 62 92,120 
Food services 14,076 3,858 17,934 - - 17,934 
Student services 40,547 11,114 51,661 - - 51,661 
Office expense 9,837 5,060 14,897 10,686 9 25,592 
Depreciation and amortization 111,563 46,399 157,962 11,021 - 168,983 
Other expenses 9,991 2,739 12,730 4,021

 -

16,751 

Total Expenses $ 3,029,454 $ 1,386,758 $ 4,416,212 $ 407,196 $ 2,411 $ 4,825,819 

See notes to financial statements 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ 297,254 $ 334,325 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 222,572 168,983 
Deferred rent (105,923) 166,490 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Grants and contracts receivable 188,638 (98,719) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 22,493 5,485 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (129,211) 185,508 
Refundable advances 181,520 (462,806) 
Due to related party 20,320 28,830 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 697,663 328,096 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of property and equipment (176,205) (307,545) 
Restricted cash (51,656) 1,656 

Net Cash from Investing Activities (227,861) (305,889) 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 469,802 22,207 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning of year 655,630 633,423 

End of year $ 1,125,432 $ 655,630 

See notes to financial statements
 7 



 
 

 
 
 

  
 

      
      

             
       

          
          

     
      

           

 
        

    
     

    
 

      
            

     
            

           
        

     
 

     
   

   
 

    
 

  
 

  
        

          
          

       

 
 
 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the "School") is a New York State, not-for-profit 
educational corporation that was incorporated on November 18, 2014 to operate a charter 
school pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School was 
granted a provisional charter on November 18, 2014 valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York 
(the “Board of Regents”). The charter will expire in June 2020. The School’s mission  is  to  
provide historically disadvantaged students with the college and career readiness skills needed 
to become responsible and engaged citizens for social justice. The School provided education 
to approximately 287 students in grades sixth through ninth during the 2018-2019 academic 
year. 

On June 14, 2019, the Board of Regents approved an amendment of the original charter to 
operate Capital Preparatory Bronx Charter School (“CP Bronx”), valid for a term of five years 
and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents. The charter will expire in June 2024. 
CP Bronx is expected to open in the fall of 2020. 

The School and CP Bronx merged into a single not-for-profit legal entity under CP Bronx, which 
serves as the sole surviving educational corporation. The plan of merger was approved by the 
State University of New York Charter School Committee on June 14, 2019, and became 
effective for financial purposes on July 1, 2019. Each school is authorized by the Charter 
Schools Institute of the State University of New York under CP Bronx’s provisional charter, as 
amended to effect the merger, and the surviving entity’s name was changed to Capital Prep 
Charter Schools NY. The School was dissolved in conjunction with this merger. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Change in Accounting Principle 

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the 
three-category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification 
of net assets in two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In 
addition, the new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures 
relating to (1) the liquidity of financial assets, and (2) expenses by both their natural and 
functional classification in one location in the financial statements. As a result of 
implementing this standard, prior year amounts for unrestricted net assets were reclassified 
as net assets without donor restrictions. 

Net Assets Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions  – Net assets available for use in general supports 
of the School’s operations and not subject to donor or grantor restrictions. Net assets 
without donor restrictions may be used at the discretion of the School’s management and 
Board of Trustees. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor or grantor imposed 
restrictions for specific activities of the School or to be used at some future date. Some 
donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the 
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions 
are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in 
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, 
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource 
was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. The School had no net assets with donor 
restrictions at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid 
debt instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of maintenance and 
repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case it is expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of such 
assets as follows: 

Furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Computers and equipment 5 years 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue. The balances of 
$252,695 and $71,175 at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were primarily due to the New York City 
Department of Education for overpayments of estimated full-time equivalent enrollment during 
the years then ended. Adjustments for the June 30, 2019 amount will be reflected in the 2019-
2020 school year payment cycle. 

Deferred Rent 

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP, whereby all rental payments, 
including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis as an offset to rent 
expense. The difference between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease 
payments, as well as any unamortized lease incentive, is reflected in deferred rent in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as temporarily 
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current period activities are recorded as 
unrestricted revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated 
fair value at the date of donation. 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruitment expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $8,038 
and $16,542. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. All returns filed by the 
School are subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 22, 2019.  

Effective July 1, 2019, the School and CP Bronx merged into a single not-for-profit legal entity 
under CP Bronx, which serves as the sole surviving educational corporation. The School was 
dissolved in conjunction of this merger, and the surviving entity’s name was changed to Capital 
Prep Charter Schools NY (see Note 1). 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable consists of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year. Management has assessed the 
need for an allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not necessary. 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 

2019 2018 
Furniture and fixtures $ 332,051 $ 219,486 
Computers and equipment 420,806 387,918 
Leasehold improvements 422,360 391,608 

1,175,217 999,012 
Accumulated depreciation
         and amortization (493,132) (270,560) 

$ 682,085 $ 728,452 

5. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,125,432 
Grants and contracts receivable 33,071 

$ 1,158,503 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is invested in highly liquid instruments. The School 
will continue to rely on funding received from the New York City Department of Education to 
cover its future operating costs (see Note 9). 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

6. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) 

The School is affiliated with Capital Preparatory Schools, Inc. (“CPS”), a Connecticut non-
stock corporation, by common management. 

During fiscal 2017, the School entered into a full service agreement with CPS to undertake, 
on its behalf, functions in regards to business, administrative, and academic services of the 
School. This agreement expires on June 30, 2021. As compensation to CPS for these 
services rendered, during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School paid to CPS 
an amount equal to 10% of the School’s gross revenues, which is defined under the full 
service agreement as funding provided by state, federal, and local government (if 
applicable) but shall exclude any competitive public grants and private grant funding 
awarded to the School. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School incurred $627,294 and $477,434 
in management fees to CPS, along with $32,214 and $45,646 of net operating expenses 
paid by CPS on behalf of the School. Net balance due to CPS from the School was $134,613 
and $114,293 at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

7. Employee Benefit Plan 

The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 401(k), for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching contributions up 
to 4% of the participant’s annual compensation. Employee match for the year ended June 30, 
2019 and 2018 amounted to $20,763 and $20,567. 

8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $949,000 and $429,000 of cash 
was maintained with an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 

9. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School received 
approximately 93% and 89% of its total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

10. Commitment 

On March 17, 2016, the School entered into an operating sub-sublease agreement with Boys 
and Girls Harbor, Inc. (“The Harbor”) to sublease a portion of a building located at 1 East 104th 

Street, New York, New York. The lease term commenced on July 1, 2016 and expires on June 
30, 2021, with four successive options to extend the term of the sublease by up to five years 
per option. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the lease was amended several 
times to reflect changes in the rent rates and leased premises size. 

Future minimum lease payments are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

2020 $ 1,489,124 
2021 1,533,683 

$ 3,022,807 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $1,293,472 and $1,226,194. 

Under the terms of the lease, The Harbor paid a monthly usage fee to the School for the use of 
the premises, which was recognized by the School as rental income. Rental income for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $0 and $333,115. 

11. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 

* * * * * 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other  
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is  a  
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910 I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

      
   

 

 
 

 
   

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  
 

      
    

 
 

   
  

    

 

 

 
 
 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section I – Financial Statement Findings
None 

Section II – Status of Prior Year Findings 

2018-001- Escrow Account for Dissolution 

Condition 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School is required to establish an escrow account of no 
less than $75,000 to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a 
dissolution should it occur. The School is required to fund the escrow account a minimum of 
$25,000 by December 31st in each of the first three years of its charter term, beginning with the 
first year of instruction. 

We noted that the School maintained a balance of $23,344 in the dissolution escrow account as 
of June 30, 2018. As this was the School’s second year of operations, the School was required 
to have funded the escrow account $50,000 by December 31, 2017. The escrow account was 
replenished to an amount equal to $50,000 in July 2018. 

Status 

This condition was corrected in fiscal 2019. 
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Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Capital Preparatory Harlem 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the 
School’s internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that 
all such deficiencies have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit 
committee, the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New 
York, the State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the 
School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



  
  

      

 
 

    
   

    
   
   

     
    
   
   

      

 
  

      

         

  

    

  

      
 

 
                  

   

  
   

       
 

  

   

            
     

                
  

            
               

                    
           

     

    
     

  
      

Transm ttal Form 
Annual F nanc al Statement Aud t Report 

for SU Y Authorized Charter Schools 

Charter School Name: Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Aud t Per od: 2018-19 
Pr or Per od: 2017-18 

Report Due Date: Friday, November 01, 2019 
Date Subm tted: Thursday, October 31, 2019 

School F scal Contact Name: Paula Altieri 
School F scal Contact Ema l: 
School F scal Contact Phone: 

School Aud t F rm Name: PKF O'Connor Davies 
School Aud t Contact Name: Gus Saliba 
School Aud t Contact Ema l: 
School Aud t Contact Phone: 

SUNY CHARTER SCHOOLS INSTITUTE - Report ng Requ rements: 

Online Portal: 
Requ red 8 Items: 
1) The independent auditor’s report on fnancial statements and notes; 
2) 

3) Reports on internal controls over fnancial reporting and on compliance. 

And,  f appl cable: 

4) Management Letter 

5) Management Letter Response N/A - No audit fndings! 

6) 

7) 
N/A 

8) Corrective Action Plan N/A 

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT - Report ng Requ rements: 
Online Portal: 

Requ red Items: 
1) This transmital form (a copy of the Excel fle containing the four schedules Does NOT need to be included) 
2) Audited Financial Report; 

And,  f appl cable: 
3) Management Letter and Response; 
4) 

Please subm t the Annual F nanc al Statement and other assoc ated documents 
to BOTH 

SUNY Charter Schools Inst tute 
AND 

New York State Educat on Department 

https:// y.epicenternow.org/ho e.aspx 

Excel template fle with appropriate sheets completed: Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash 
Flow and Functional Expenses worksheets; and 

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 
items are not included. 
Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend federal 
funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be 
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc  

If not included, state the reason(s) below. Or, if not applicable fll 
i "N/ ")  

Form 990; or Extension Form 
8868 
Federal Single Audit/ Uniform 
Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F 

https://nysed-cso-reports. yreviewroo .co / 

Federal Single Audit/
Uniform Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. 



   

 

   
  

   

   

  
 

    
      

 

       

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of F nanc al Pos t on 

as of June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid expenses

Contributions and other receivables TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS 

2018-19 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefts
Deferred Revenue
Current maturities of long-term debt
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable

Other TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

1,928, 40 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturitiesTOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

 $ 1,125,432 
 

 

1,171,  

68  

 

$ 141,847 

25  

13  
52  

43  

43  

96  

96  



                                  

 

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS 

96  

1,928, 40 

CK - Should be zero -



   

 

   
  

  

  

  

   
     

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CH  
Statement of F nanc al Po 

as of June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 2017-18

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 655,630 
Grants and contracts receivable  
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses  

Contributions and other receivables TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS  

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net  

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 271,058 
Accrued payroll and benefts 
Deferred Revenue  
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other TOTAL CURRENT                            114,293 
LIABILITIES  

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent  

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES  

 

1,  4, 80 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

 

Unrestricted  

Temporarily restricted 



   

   

                                  

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS

  

1,  4, 80 

CK - Should be zero -



 

  

    

   

 
    

                                                                    
                                                                                     

    
                                                                                          
                                                                                     
                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                     

                                                                              

                                                                                                                        

                                                                 

   
                                                                   
                                                                           
                                                                                                                      

                                                                    
                                                                                     

                                                                                               
                                                                

                                                                        

 
  

                                                                                                             
                                                  
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                          

                                                                                                                         
                                                                          

                                                                         

                                                                                       

                                                                                                                       

                                                                  

  
 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Act v t es 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18
Temporar ly

 Unrestr cted Restr cted  Total  Total

 REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

Resident Student Enrollment $ 4,538,174 $ - $ 4,538,174 $ 3,373,824 
Students with disabilities 137,054 - 137,054 455,466 

Grants and Contracts 
State and local 30,421 - 30,421 18,594 
Federal - Title and IDEA 249,935 - 249,935 213,063 
Federal - Other - - - -
Other - - - -

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 1,314,677 - 1,314,677 741,821 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program - - - -

 TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 6,270,261 - 6,270,261 4,802,768

 EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education $ 3,879,000 $ - $ 3,879,000 $ 3,029,454 
Special Education 1,848,425 - 1,848,425 1,386,758 
Other Programs - - - -

Total Program Services 5,727,425 - 5,727,425 4,416,212 
Management and general 399,419 - 399,419 407,196 

Fundraising 1,907 - 1,907 2,411
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,128,751 - 6,128,751 4,825,819 

RPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 141,510 - 141,510 (23,051)

 SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 

Foundations $ - $ - $ - $ -
Individuals - -
Corporations 155,744 - 155,744 24,261 

Fundraising - - - -
Interest income - - - -
Miscellaneous income - - - 333,115 

Net assets released from restriction - - - -
 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 155,744 - 155,744 357,376

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 297,254 - 297,254 334,325 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 666,373 - 666,373 332,048 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

 NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 963,627 $ - $ 963,627 $ 666,373 



                                                           
                                                                                        
                                                                                     

                                                                                       
                                                            

                                                             
                                                                                      

                                                                                     
                                                                   

                                                           
                                                                                     
                                                                                     

                                                                                       
                                                                                     

                                                           
                                                                                     
                                                           

                                                                   
                                                        

                                                          
                                                                
                                                    

                                                                                        
                                                                                    
                                                                                

                                                          
                                                                

                                                     

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 297,254 $ 334,325 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 222,572 168,983 
Grants Receivable 188,638 (98,719) 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses 22,493 5,485 
Accounts Payable (129,211) 185,508 
Accrued Expenses - -
Accrued Liabilities - -
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue 181,520 (462,806) 
Interest payments - -
Deferred Rent (105,923) 166,490 
Due to Related Party 20,320 28,830 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 697,663 $ 328,096 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment (176,205) (307,545) 
Other (51,656) 1,656 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (227,861) $ (305,889) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 469,802 $ 22,207 
Cash at beginning of year 655,630 633,423 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,125,432 $ 655,630 



 

  
           

                                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                          

      
  

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Funct onal Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 
Program Services Supporting Services 

No. of Regular Special Other Management
Positions Education Education Education Total Fund-raising and General Total Total 

Personnel Services Costs $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 5.00 318,462 85,316 - 403,778 1,050 117,511 118,561 522,339 410,266 
Instructional Personnel 28.00 1,089,618 653,350 - 1,742,968 - - - 1,742,968 1,193,110 
Non-Instructional Personnel 2.00 61,533 16,745 - 78,278 - - - 78,278 11,639 
Total Salaries and Staf 35.00 1,469,613 755,411 - 2,225,024 1,050 117,511 118,561 2,343,585 1,615,015 

Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 402,461 206,873 - 609,334 287 32,182 32,469 641,803 448,450 
Retirement 13,020 6,692 - 19,712 9 1,042 1,051 20,763 20,567 
Management Company Fees 412,132 149,296 - 561,428 - 65,866 65,866 627,294 477,434 
Legal Service - - - - - 47,640 47,640 47,640 43,574 
Accounting / Audit Services - - - - - 28,363 28,363 28,363 23,292 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting Servic 192,528 51,761 - 244,289 2 279 281 244,570 245,301 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance In 789,793 439,005 - 1,228,798 392 64,282 64,674 1,293,472 1,226,194 
Repairs & Maintenance 73,288 40,737 - 114,025 36 5,965 6,001 120,026 98,668 
Insurance 29,737 16,529 - 46,266 15 2,421 2,436 48,702 35,793 
Utilities 5,182 1,782 - 6,964 1 482 483 7,447 8,043 
Supplies / Materials 109,950 29,935 - 139,885 - - - 139,885 158,828 
Equipment / Furnishings 39,136 10,655 - 49,791 - 2,718 2,718 52,509 17,016 
Staf Development 11,520 3,135 - 14,655 - 174 174 14,829 18,061 
Marketing / Recruitment 6,258 1,761 - 8,019 - 19 19 8,038 16,542 
Technology 80,092 41,169 - 121,261 57 6,405 6,462 127,723 92,120 
Food Service 18,880 5,138 - 24,018 - - - 24,018 17,934 
Student Services 40,570 11,040 - 51,610 - - - 51,610 51,661 
Ofce Expense 27,654 14,215 - 41,869 20 12,849 12,869 54,738 25,592 
Depreciation 151,133 61,644 - 212,777 38 9,757 9,795 222,572 168,983 

OTHER 6,053 1,647 - 7,700 - 1,464 1,464 9,164 16,751 
Total Expenses $ 3,879,000 $ 1,848,425 $ - $ 5,727,425 $ 1,907 $ 399,419 $ 401,326 $ 6,128,751 $ 4,825,819 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119074895/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading The current year 990 is not yet available. 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 

to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable as school did not receive federal funds in excess 

the Federal Single Audit. of the threshold of $750,000. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not applicable to school. 
the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119074895/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading There were no audit findings and therefore no corrective action 

the Corrective Action Plan. plan 

2 / 2 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
     

  
  

 
 

      
  

 
   

 
 

 
  

   
   

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
    

 
 

Board of Trustees 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Capital Preparatory Harlem 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the 
School’s internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that 
all such deficiencies have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit 
committee, the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New 
York, the State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the 
School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

Customer service information

Customer service: 1.888.400.9009

bankofamerica.com

Bank of America, N.A.
P.O. Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER
SCHOOL
ESCROW ACCOUNT
1 E 104TH ST FL 4
NEW YORK, NY  10029-4420

P.O. Box 15284
Wilmington, DE 19850

PULL: E   CYCLE: 60   SPEC: 0   DELIVERY: P   TYPE:    IMAGE: I   BC: NY Page 1 of 4

Your Full Analysis Business Checking - Small Business 
for June 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019 Account number:

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER     SCHOOL     ESCROW ACCOUNT

Account summary
Beginning balance on June 1, 2019 $75,000.00

Deposits and other credits 0.00

Withdrawals and other debits -0.00

Checks -0.00

Service fees -0.00

Ending balance on June 30, 2019 $75,000.00

# of deposits/credits: 0

# of withdrawals/debits: 0

# of days in cycle: 30

Average ledger balance: $75,000.00



 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER   !   Account # !   June 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019

Page 2 of 4

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS

How to Contact Us - You may call us at the telephone number listed on the front of this statement.

Updating your contact information - We encourage you to keep your contact information up-to-date. This includes address, email
and phone number. If your information has changed, the easiest way to update it is by visiting the Help & Support tab of Online
Banking.

Deposit agreement - When you opened your account, you received a deposit agreement and fee schedule and agreed that your
account would be governed by the terms of these documents, as we may amend them from time to time. These documents are
part of the contract for your deposit account and govern all transactions relating to your account, including all deposits and
withdrawals. Copies of both the deposit agreement and fee schedule which contain the current version of the terms and
conditions of your account relationship may be obtained at our financial centers.

Electronic transfers: In case of errors or questions about your electronic transfers - If you think your statement or receipt is
wrong or you need more information about an electronic transfer (e.g., ATM transactions, direct deposits or withdrawals,
point-of-sale transactions) on the statement or receipt, telephone or write us at the address and number listed on the front of
this statement as soon as you can. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on
which the error or problem appeared.

- Tell us your name and account number.
- Describe the error or transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error or

why you need more information.
- Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error.

For consumer accounts used primarily for personal, family or household purposes, we will investigate your complaint and will
correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days (10 calendar days if you are a Massachusetts customer) (20
business days if you are a new customer, for electronic transfers occurring during the first 30 days after the first deposit is
made to your account) to do this, we will provisionally credit your account for the amount you think is in error, so that you will
have use of the money during the time it will take to complete our investigation.

For other accounts, we investigate, and if we find we have made an error, we credit your account at the conclusion of our
investigation.

Reporting other problems - You must examine your statement carefully and promptly. You are in the best position to discover
errors and unauthorized transactions on your account. If you fail to notify us in writing of suspected problems or an unauthorized
transaction within the time period specified in the deposit agreement (which periods are no more than 60 days after we make
the statement available to you and in some cases are 30 days or less), we are not liable to you and you agree to not make a
claim against us, for the problems or unauthorized transactions.

Direct deposits - If you have arranged to have direct deposits made to your account at least once every 60 days from the same
person or company, you may call us to find out if the deposit was made as scheduled. You may also review your activity online or
visit a financial center for information.

 © 2019 Bank of America Corporation



CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER   !   Account # !   June 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019

Your checking account

Page 3 of 4

Daily ledger balances
Date Balance ($)

06/01 75,000.00
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Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Created: 07/25/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Paula Altieri 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Gus Saliba PKF 3O'Connor Davies 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with 
Person Address Firm 

1 / 1 







      
          

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 

Page 3 of 64 



     

    

    

 
  
   
 
 

 
  

  

ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

SCHOOL 
Name: Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Paula Altieri 
Contact Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Contact Email: 
Contact Phone: 

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 

Page 4 of 64 





      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

  
     

 

PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Page 6 of 64 



 
 

    

   
    

 

 
  

 

  

8 9 10 11 12 
100 100 100 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 

Page 



   
     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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ALANCE SHEET 
    

 

 

        

 
   

   
 

 
   

  

    

 

 

   

 
    

   
 

    
      
 

  

       

 

 

 
  

    

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

DO NOT ENTER BALANCE SHEET DATA ON THIS 
TEMPLATE 2019-20 

Balance sheet data should forthe Ed Corp: 
CapitalPreparatory Bronx Charter School (Combined) Prior Year 

should be entered on the template for 
CapitalPreparatory Bronx Charter School. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES -

-LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

TOTAL NET ASSETS -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS -

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

- - - -
- - - -

Page 35 of 64 



























































  
    

    

  

         
     

     
     

       

          

Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 

Page 64 of 64 













         
   

 
 

  
 

  
 

          
          

  
 

     
  

 

        
     

 

             
   

 
 

       
 

          
     

        
          

         
            

        
       

     

 
 

     
      

 
     

            
         

  

       
         

________________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name: 

Maurice Coleman 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name, 
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

Treasurer 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 
____Yes  __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,  
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or  education corporation;  
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

I am the Head of Schools for Capital Preparatory Schools, the CMO for the 
Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School. I started in that role July 1, 2015. 
Salary for 2018-2019 was one hundred seventy five thousand dollars. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 



             
          

               
         

     
   

 
   

 
   

  
  

  
   

 
 

   
  

  
  
  

 

    
 
 
 

 

 

      
    
        

        
            

        
          

   
       

        
      

        
 

 

 

you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not  disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 

of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

None  

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in  your house had a  
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the  
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 



 
 
 
 

              
        

 
              

         
     

           

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 
 

   
 
  

 

  
    

   
 

 
  

 
  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducte 

d 

Approximat 
e value of 

the 
business 

conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business 
with the school(s) and 

the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

None  

________ _________________________ July 30, 2019_____ 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

last revised 08/21/2018 
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Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/23/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Derek 
Ferguson,

Maurice 
Coleman 

Reverend 
Georgiett
e Morgan
Thomas 

Dr. 
Stephen
D. Perry

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Treasurer 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Audit, 
Real 
Estate 

Finance, 
Real 
Estate 

Real 
Estate 

Real 
Estate 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

4 

4 

3 

4 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

7/1/2018 

7/1/2018 

7/1/2018 

7/1/2018 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

6/30/201
9 

6/30/201
9 

6/30/201
9 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

12 

9 

7 

6/30/201 12 9 

1 / 2 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Iyanla
Vanzant 

Trustee/M
ember 

none Yes 4 7/1/2018 
6/30/201
9 

5 or less 

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

5 

0 

0 

5 

12 

13 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Created: 07/23/2019 • Last updated: 07/30/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting Yes 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

A. Provide if posted on the https://capitalprepharlem.org/apps/pages/index.jsp? 

charter school's website a URL uREC_ID=329370&type=d&termREC_ID=&pREC_ID=740014 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 07/10/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY (CP) HARLEM CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

The Capital Prep Team held several parent
open house/ information sessions in school
and at local NYCHA housing centers,
community centers, and cornerstones. The
Capital Prep Harlem continued their dialogue
with neighborhood schools and organizations
about Capital Prep Harlem. 

The Capital Prep Team will continue to host
parent open house/ information sessions in
school and at local NYCHA housing centers,
community centers, and cornerstones. The
Capital Prep Harlem will continued their
dialogue with neighborhood schools and
organizations about Capital Prep Harlem. 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 

Through Connections with current ELL
families and student, the Capital Prep
Harlem Team reached out to other families 
about the school and its inclusive 
programming. 

Continued outreach through our current ELL
families as well as holding information
sessions and implementing online campaign
through social media informing families
about our inclusive programming. 

s 

Student 
s with 
Disabilit 
ies 

The Special Education Support Team attends
all open houses, information sessions, and
potential parent events. Parents and families
continued to have opportunities to discuss
programming and have their questions
answered. 

The Special Education Support Team attends
all open houses, information sessions, and
potential parent events. Parents and families
continued to have opportunities to discuss
programming and have their questions
answered. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

At Capital Prep Harlem, the Student
Government plays a key role in improving

Econom the school culture and empowering students
ically to lead the growth and development of the
Disadva school. Families are engaged through the
ntaged school's parent group and five parent

meetings through out the year regarding
student and school progress. 

English
Langua Staff diversity was key and Capital Prepge Harlem continued to increase the number of Learner bilingual staff. Translation was available fors/Multili parents, and information was provided in angual variety of languages. Learner 
s 

Capital Prep Harlem offers an ICT model to
support student needs as required by their
Individual Education Plan. In addition, the 
school's model offered support through the

Student Advisory Program so that each student had
s with an advisor and a special education teacher
Disabilit monitoring their progress and
ies communicating with the families. Students

were offered small group learning and social
emotional learning opportunities to ensure
that they are succeding and surpassing their
goals and targets. 

Capital Prep Harlem will continue to develop
and improve the school's culture through the
school's parent group and five parent
meetings through out the year regarding
student and school progress. 

Capital Prep Harlem will continue to promote
staff diversity by ontining to increase the
number of bilingual staff. Translation will be
available for parents, and information will
continue to be provided in a variety of
languages. 

Capital Prep Harlem will continue to offer an
ICT model to support student needs as
required by their Individual Education Plan. In
addition, the school's model offered support
through the Advisory Program so that each
student had an advisor and a special
education teacher monitoring their progress
and communicating with the families.
Students were offered small group learning
and social emotional learning opportunities
to ensure that they are succeding and
surpassing their goals and targets. 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	

	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	

	 	
	

	

	

Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/10/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

16 10 9 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

7 22 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

1 3 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/23/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

19 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

3 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

19 

9 

0 

0 

0 

10 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter	 School 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 

July	23,	2018 

A	 meeting of the Board	 of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the “School”) was 
held	 on	 Monday, July 23rd,	2018 at Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School, 1	 East 104th Street, New York, NY	 
10029. The meeting was called to order	 at	 6:14 pm. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Dr. Steve Perry (DSP) 
Maurice Coleman (MC) 

Others Present: 
Jill Cutler-Hodgman (JCH), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Danita Jones, Principal (DJ) 
Joan Massey (JM), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Michelle Williams, Director of Operations (MW) 
Paula	 Altieri	(PA), 	Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Cliff Schneider (CS), Cohen	 Schneider Law Firm 
Kashani Stokley (KS), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 

Three (3)	 of	 the Five (5)	 trustees in attendance were present throughout the meeting	 and	 that constituted	 a	 
quorum for the transaction	 of business at the meeting. 

DF chaired the meeting; MW kept the minutes for this meeting 

1. Call to order – 6:14 pm 

2. Adoption of Agenda: 

A	 motion	 to	 approve the agenda for the July 23rd,	 board	 meeting was made by SP, seconded	 by MC and 
unanimously approved. 

3. Public Comments: 

Ms. Lau spoke about the Blazer Ceremony and her child’s grades. 

Ms. Bell spoke briefly about the Capital Prep Harlem Film festival. 

4. Approval of minutes: 

A	 motion	 to	 approve the minutes from the June 20th board meeting was made by SP seconded by MC and 
unanimously approved. 

1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029 



 

 

	
	 	 			

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 			 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	
													 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

													 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 			

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	
	
	

5. School Update 

DJ distributed handout with	 MAP testing results and	 discussed	 the growth and comparisons. She	 also 
discussed	 the level of instruction	 and	 academic work that the staff and	 the students demonstrated	 
through the last	 day of	 school. DJ	 also highlighted the end of	 year	 events,	including 	the 	Blazer 	Ceremony,	 
field day and the Film Festival. 

DF spoke about the Blazer Ceremony and how compelling it was to see the families participate. 

MC recommended that the school should be documenting through video of these extraordinary events. 

SP	 spoke	 about the	 significance	 of the	 growth and achievement that CPH attained relative	 to the	 others in 
the cohort	 and how the school improved upon the Blazer	 Ceremony that	 has been a longstanding 
tradition for	 Capital Prep by including families. 

6. Board	 Development 

Re-election	 of Trustees and	 Officers – The board unanimously approved the officers remain in the same 
titles and on the board of	 trustees for	 the upcoming 2018-19	 term. 

Parent & New member discussion & referral – MW	 sent referral for potential board member, Kamilah 
Forbes, meetings will be	 set up. Additional candidates were	 discussed and will be	 contacted to assess	 
interest 	and 	next 	steps.		MW & 	DJ 	have 	identified a 	few 	potential	parent 	board 	member, 	will	assess	 
interest 	and 	discuss 	at 	the 	next 	board 	meeting. 

7. New Business 

Approval of Employee Handbook Revisions – Motion to approve the revised employee handbook was 
made by MC and seconded by SP, the board	 unanimously approved	 the revisions in	 the employee 
handbook. 

Approval of Interim Amendment to	 Sub-Sublease – motion to approve the revised employee handbook 
was made by SP and seconded by SP, unanimously approved by the board. 

8.	 Financial Report 

PA submitted the	 financial statements for period ending May 31, 2018. 

9. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the Board resolved to adjourn the meeting at	 7:46pm. Motion	 to	 
approve	 by DF	 second by SP. 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter	 School 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 

August 22,	2018 

A	 meeting of the Board	 of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the “School”) was 
held	 on	 Wednesday, August 22,	2018 at Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School, 1	 East 104th Street, New York, 
NY 10029. The meeting was called to order	 at	 5:42 pm. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Dr. Steve Perry (DSP) 
Reverend	 Morgan	 Thomas (RMT) 

Others Present: 
Jill Cutler-Hodgman (JCH), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Danita Jones, Principal (DJ) 
Joan Massey (JM), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Michelle Williams, Director of Operations (MW) 
Paula	 Altieri	(PA), 	Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Rich	 Beganski (RB), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Kashani Stokley (KS), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 

Three (3)	 of	 the Five (5) trustees in attendance were present	 throughout	 the meeting and that	 constituted a 
quorum for the transaction	 of business at the meeting. 

DF chaired the meeting; MW kept the minutes for this meeting 

1. Call to order – 5:42 pm 

2. Adoption of Agenda: 

A	 motion	 to	 approve the agenda for the August 22nd board	 meeting was made by SP, seconded	 by RMT 
and unanimously approved. 

3. Public Comments: 

No Public was present at the meeting 

4. Approval of minutes: 

A	 motion	 to	 approve the minutes from the July 23rd board meeting was made by RMT seconded by SP and 
unanimously approved. 

5. School Update 

1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029 



 

 

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
													 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 			
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	
	

DJ distributed the principals update sheet, discussed the 1st week of school. The excitement around the 
upcoming events and	 the fact that we have started	 a football program. 

DF spoke about the Blazer Ceremony and how compelling it was to see the families participate. 

6. Board	 Development 

Approval of the 2018-19	 Board	 meeting	 Calendar – The board unanimously approved the proposed	 
2018-19	 meeting calendar. 

9. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the Board resolved to adjourn the meeting at	 6:12pm. Motion	 to	 
approve	 by DF	 second by SP. 

2 



                                             

       

 

 
	
	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	 		

	 	 	 	
	 	 		

	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	

          
 

      
 

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	  

 
 

    
    

 
 

     
 

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	  
 

 
        

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter	 School 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 26, 2018 

A	 meeting of the Board	 of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the “School”) was held	 on	 
Wednesday, September 26, 2018 at Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY	 10029. The	 
meeting was called to order at 6:26 pm. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 
Maurice Coleman (MC) 

Others Present: 
Jill Cutler-Hodgman (JCH), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Danita Jones (DJ), Principal (CPH) 
Michelle Williams (MW), Director of Operations (CPH) 
Paula	 Altieri (PA), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Rich	 Beganski (RB), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Kashani Stokley (KS), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Dolores Concepcion (DC), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 

Three (3) of	 the Five (5)	 trustees in attendance were present	 throughout	 the meeting and that	 constituted a quorum for	 the 
transaction of	 business at	 the meeting. 

DF chaired the meeting; MW kept the minutes for this meeting 

I. Call to order – 6:26pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 

● A	 motion	 to	 approve the agenda for the September 26, 2018 board	 meeting was made by SP, seconded	 by MC	 
and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 
● No public comments 

IV. Audit Planning Communication 

● Daniel Smolan from PKF O’Connor Davies (Auditors) distributed a presentation and talked through the audit 
process, deliverables, scope and	 approach. Discussions around	 the auditor’s responsibilities and	 best practices 
for	 the Capital Prep in the coming years. 

V. Approval of August 22, 2018 Board Minutes 

1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029 



 

 

 
 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 
 

   

         
                

          
 

  
           

           
           

              
 

     
          

                 
 

 
   

 
 	 	 	 	  

 	 	 	 	  
 

           
 

           
 

  
                    

    
 

 
 
	
	
	
	

● A	 motion	 to	 approve the minutes from the August	 22, 2018 board meeting was made by MC seconded by SP 
and unanimously approved. 

VI. Reports 

● School update (data, events, updates, enrollment and recruiting) 
➢ Principal Jones distributed a report for discussion that included updated data from scholar ELA & 

Math testing, illuminator professional development, evaluations, MAP data & school 
improvement plans.  Update on student recruitment and current enrollment. 

● Financial Impact of Enrollment 
➢ Discussions around low enrollment and how the budget will be adjusted accordingly. 

● Financial Report June 30, 2018 Fiscal Year End Financial Statements 
➢ PA distributed the financial statement report that included Statement of activities, current 

financial position and cash flow statement. The executive summary provided narrative support to 
the forecasted changes in revenue & expenditures. 

● Impact of Lease Execution/Negotiations 
➢ Discussion was around the importance of signing the lease so that Capital Prep will not lose any 

funding. An executed lease needs to be submitted to receive the full lease assistance from the 
state. 

VII. Board Development 

● Parent & New Member Update	 (Board) 
➢ Moved to next board meeting 

VIII. New Business - moved to next board meeting 

IX. Executive Session (personnel matters) – moved to next board meeting 

X. Adjournment 
● There being no further business, the Board resolved to adjourn the meeting at 6:12pm. Motion to approve by 

DF second by SP 
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Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Board of Directors 

October 8, 2018 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School (the “School”) was held on Monday, 
October 8, 2018 at Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called to 
order at 6:48 pm. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Dr. Steve Perry (DSP) 
Maurice Coleman (MC) 

Others Present: 
Jill Cutler-Hodgman (JCH), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Danita Jones, Principal (DJ) 
Michelle Williams, Director of Operations (MW) 
Rich Beganski (RB), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Kashani Stokley (KS), Capital Preparatory Schools (CPS) 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 

Three (3) of the Five (5) trustees in attendance were present throughout the meeting and that constituted a quorum for the 
transaction of business at the meeting. 

DF chaired the meeting; MW kept the minutes for this meeting 

1. Call to order – 6:48 pm 

2. Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion to approve the agenda for October 8, 2018 board meeting was made by SP, seconded by MC 
and unanimously approved. 

3. Public Comments: 

No public was present at the meeting 

4. Approval of minutes: 

A motion to approve the minutes from the September 26, 2018, board meeting was made by MC 
seconded by SP and unanimously approved. 

5. School Update (events, updates, enrollment & recruiting) 

DJ distributed the principal’s report, discussed the success of the Bronx hearing, the addition of the figure 
skating program, and the visit from the Robinhood Foundation. 

1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029 



 

 
               

 
                  
       

 
 

     
 
 
 

  
 

                 
      

 
 
 

 

6. Board Development 

The discussion to add another board member was continued with Dia Simms as a contender. The Board 
will move forward with the appropriate steps. 

7. Executive Session (Personnel Matters) 

8. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the Board resolved to adjourn the meeting at 10:30 p.m. Motion to 
Approve by DF second by SP. 

2 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
     	

 
  	

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

  	
 

 
 

 
  	

 
 	

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 

School Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, November 19, 2018 

1 East 104" Street 4th Fl. 
New York, NY 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, November 19, 2018, at Capital Preparatory 
Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called 
to order at 6:23 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Maurice Coleman (MC) 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 

Other Present: 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 

Three (3) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance and were present throughout the 
meeting; therefore, there was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order  6:23 pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 

A motion to approve the agenda for the November 19,, 2018 board meeting was 
made by SP, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

IV. Approval of October 8, 2018 Board Minutes 

A motion to approve the minutes for the October 8, 2018 board meeting was made 
by SP, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

V. Reports 

A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment and recruiting) 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 	

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

 	

 
 

 
  

 
 

  

 
  

 
  

 
 

DJ distributed a report with student data and enrollment updates.  She discussed 
recent events such as the successful Hispanic American Extravaganza with 
approximately 150 parents in attendance, the 8th grade transition meeting with 40 
parents, Saturday school for the first 12 weeks, parental literacy class, coat drive, 
Harlem Globetrotters event, and Open Enrollment events.  DJ also discussed 
upcoming events such as the Robinhood visit, open enrollment events, a trip to 
Columbia for those interested in law, and SLC’s 
DJ introduced Rachelly Crime, the new Operations Manager; she is already 
invaluable to the team and doing important work for us. 
In response to an inquiry from DF, DJ explained that MAP testing was shared and 
the second round will be in January.  60% of school is new, so the baseline data 
looks as it has looked previously 

DF discussed the importance of EQ as it relates to college persistence. 

B. Finance Report 
PA distributed the financial report and reviewed the same.  She discussed the 
negative variance related to the lower enrollment and the mitigation strategy of 
holding on vacancies.  
MC inquired as to the impact to the school. 
DJ responded to the question and reviewed the impact at the school level and 
where the vacancies are and what positions the school intends to fill. 
DF inquired regarding the lease costs and PA responded explaining that the lease 
reimbursements are tied to the number of students. 

C. Audit Report 
PA provided a copy of the audited financials and reports. 
DF raised concern that the comment related to the escrow deposit should not have 
been treated as significant deficiency as the school had the funds. 
The Board discussed how to communicate with them about the same. 

D. Discussion of Board Schedule 
If the Board holds to the scheduled meeting on December 10th, SP will have to 
attend by video conference. 

E. Communications and Development Update 
Dolores Concepcion, Director of Communications and Development, provided an 
update on the website refresh, content calendar, donation buttons, and social media 
presence. 

VI. Board Development 

CS explained the process to add a board member under NYSED procedures. 

A motion to add Dia Simms to the Board of Trustees subject to NYSED Charter 
Schools Office’s Procedures for adding board members to an existing board of 
trustees was made by DF, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

VII. New Business 

FPP Modification 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

       
      

    
      
       

    
     

 

     
 

 
  

 

RESOLVED that the Board approves Paula Altieri, Chief Operating Officer of 
Capital Preparatory Schools to increase the Debit Card account, ending in account 
number 1379, to the amount of $25,000 annually.  

A motion to approve the FPP modifications to allow Paula Altieri, Chief Operating 
Officer of Capital Preparatory School to increase the Debit Card account, ending 
in account number 1379, to the amount of $25,000 annually was made by SP, 
seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

Signatory Addition/Approval 
RESOLVED that the Board approves Paula Altieri, Chief Operating Officer of 
Capital Preparatory Schools as an authorized signatory on all instruments except 
for any payments or reimbursements to Capital Preparatory Schools Inc. and bank 
accounts for the School; and that each officer of the School, acting or signing, 
singly, is hereby authorized and empowered on behalf of and in the name of the 
School, to execute and deliver all such other instruments and documents and to do 
all such other acts and things as, in each officer’s judgment, may be necessary or 
advisable to carry out the purposes and intent of the foregoing resolutions. 

A motion to approve signatory addition and approval with modification was made 
by SP, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

VIII. Adjournment 
The Meeting adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
  

  
 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 

School Board of Trustees Meeting 

Wednesday, December 19, 2018 

1 East 104" Street 4th Fl. 
New York, NY 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, December 19, 2018, at Capital Preparatory 
Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called 
to order at 6:41 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF)- Video Conferencing 
Maurice Coleman (MC)-Video Conferencing 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 

Other Present: 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Cliff Schneider (CS)- Video Conferencing 
Dolores Concepcion (DC)- Video Conferencing 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA)- Video Conferencing 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH)-Video Conferencing 

Members of the public: 
Magda Mangual 
Dalia Drammeh 

Three (3) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance two (2) were in attendance via video 
and were present throughout the meeting; therefore, there was a quorum for the transaction 
of business at the meeting. 

I.  Call to order 6:41 pm 

II.  Adoption of Agenda 

A motion to approve the agenda for the December 19, 2018 board meeting was 
made by SP seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

IV.  Approval of November 19, 2018 Board Minutes 

A motion to approve the minutes for the November 19, 2018 board meeting was 
made by SP, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

V.  Reports 

A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment and recruiting) 
DJ distributed a report with student data and enrollment updates. After the new 
business items, she thanked the Board for approving the new copiers as the lack of 
access to functioning copiers caused significant stress for Illuminators. She also 
acknowledged RC’s efforts to attract students (4 since the last Board meeting). 
She reviewed the recent and upcoming events. She highlighted the AT&T event, 
the foreign diplomat small group session that may give rise to a Model UN club, 
the recent SLCs, the Snowball Dance, and the Hour of Code at Harbor Lower. 
She requested that the Board forward any names of contacts who would be 
interested in leading small group conversations with students as these 
opportunities are great for students. Also, she spoke to the power of Harlem 
scholars teaching code to the younger students in CT. 

Upcoming events include the following: the Sports Banquet, the Robinhood Visit 
(anticipated to be 75 minutes with class observations and debriefs), MAP testing, 
Super Bold, Robotics Prototype Night, and the Bank of America course. 

B. Finance Report 
PA distributed the financial report. There were no questions. 

C. Confirmation of next Board Meeting January 14, 2019 
DF, MC, and SP confirmed availability for the next scheduled meeting. 

VI. New Business 

A. RESOLVED that the Board approves the signing of the Konica Minolta 36 

month lease of $23,376.96 over the term for two high volume black and 

white copiers. 

A motion to approve the lease was made by SP, seconded by MC, and 

unanimously approved. 

VII. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     	
 

  	
 

 
 

 
 	

 
 

 
 

  	

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 

School Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, January 14, 2019 

1 East 104" Street 4th Fl. 
New York, NY 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, January 14, 2019, at Capital Preparatory 
Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called 
to order at 6:53 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF)  
Maurice Coleman (MC) - via video conference 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 
Rev. Morgan Thomas (MT) 

Others Present: 
Dia Simms (DS) 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 
Isaiah Brown (IB) 
Joan Massey (JM) - via telephone 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 

Members of the public: 
Vashta Dunlap 

Four (4) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance throughout the meeting; therefore, there 
was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order 6:53 pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 

A motion to approve the agenda for the January 14, 2019 board meeting was made 
by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

IV. Approval of December 19, 2018 Board Minutes 



 
 

 
 

  	
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

A motion to approve the minutes for the December 19, 2018 board meeting was 
made by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

V. Reports 

A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment and recruiting) 
Dean Brown (IB) reported on recent events including the sports banquet, student 
academic awards event, the December staff outing, and the Robinhood visit. 

The Board discussed the Robinhood visit, the identified strengths and areas of 
growth, and importance of telling the story through data and otherwise of the 
differences with Capital Prep.  Of particular note, we must look at individual and 
cohort data and tell our story of taking students who others do not across all grade 
levels. 

IB shared the enrollment data. 

DF asked for the ins and outs for totals for enrollment  (+ and - year to date). 

IB indicated that coming up shortly was MAP testing, a staff event with painting, 
and the robotics competition. 

SP explained that the school was hosting the state qualifying robotics event Saturday 
the 26th from 7:30 am to 4:30 pm and any support would be appreciated given the 
challenges. 

DF asked that the team notify the insurance carrier that will be a special event. 

DF asked that the sports schedule on the website. 

IB indicated that the school participates in the charter school athletic league. 

RC - Application numbers - for the 2019-2020 school year, if the goal is 1400 for 
April 1, the number should be 600 now.  It is at 437. 
We need to get out there to be out there and should be advertising simultaneously. 
We are not well known yet.  

DC explained that we are identifying partner organizations with shared values. 
We are advertising on social media.  January and late March are where the spikes 
are. 

SP shared his experience of seeking out organizations that share DNA and are 
consistent with theme and mission.  Also, we need to create visibility in the 
community as a whole.  We still get typically more students than other schools.  

MT suggested that we provide information to the Harlem Y. 

DS asked if we have a board committee focusing on this. 

DF stated that a recruitment subcommittee makes sense.  



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

  
 

  
 

MT suggested that SP could speak at the Y. 

DF recommended that we make sure we need a target for each grade level; not with 
number of applications. 

DS suggested that we can augment the plan that is in place already.  We can send it 
out to our networks as individuals.  The school blows people away when people see 
it.  

B. Finance Report 

PA reviewed the November 30, 2018 financials.   

C. Confirmation of next Board Meeting February 11, 2019 

D. Real Estate Update 

VI. New Business 

VII. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 



          

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
  
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, February 11, 2019 

1 East 104" Street 5th Floor 
New York, NY 

Minutes 
A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, February 11, 2019, at Capital Preparatory 
Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called 
to order at 6:33 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) 
Maurice Coleman (MC) 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 
Rev. Morgan Thomas (MT) 

Others Present: 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 
Richard Beganski, Jr. (RB) 
Isaiah Brown (IB) 
Joan Massey (JM) - via telephone 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 

Four (4) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance throughout the meeting; therefore, there 
was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order at 6:33 p.m. 

II. Adoption of Agenda 

A motion to approve the agenda for the February 11, 2019 board meeting was made 
by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 

Ms. Hilliard raised concerns regarding cyber bullying and requested a safety meeting. She 
indicated that there are some issues in the neighborhood and wants to address gaps in 
communication. 

MT said that she would reach out to the commander. The police presence can make a real 
difference. It takes constant involvement with the police and real communication. 

Ms. Duffie spoke about her 3 years in the school and wants to understand when we can we 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  

draw the line and hold students accountable for the acts of the parents. 

Ms. Chaplin stated that parent patrols are needed across the country, not just here. 

DF said more will transpire. It is what the enemy wants. If it were easy, it would be done. 
We have to operate together. Unity will be the greatest power in this. 

IV. Approval of January 14, 2019 Board Minutes 

A motion to approve the minutes for the January 14, 2019 board meeting was made 
by SP, seconded by DF, and unanimously approved. 

V. Reports 

A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment and recruiting) 
IB reviewed the student demographics, enrollment, discipline, etc. and the Board discussed 
the challenges in families not providing FRL forms. 

RC explained that all NYC schools get free lunch regardless of whether the families provide 
the forms. 

CS agreed that fewer people fill out the form because lunch is now for everyone. 

The Board reviewed the Dashboard and asked school leaders and CPS leaders questions 
regarding student retention (exits and entrances) and student achievement numbers. 

SP agreed to provide cohort data at a future meeting to tell the story of the Capital Prep 
student. 

B. Recruiting Plan Update 
SP explained that we are aiming at enrolling 575 students (15% higher than capacity). We 
are looking at the number of students returning by percent and by grade level. 
We understand that if we have the same percentages as in the past, we will need 2600 
students to apply. As District 4 has only 4800 in the grades that we are accepting, this is not 
likely. So, we have to focus on getting a higher number of acceptances and make sure that 
we have partnerships and alignments to support the same. 

DC provided an update on the methods and approaches to marketing and communication 
with applicants to improve our engagement. Some highlights: Daily News Charter School, 
Patch Harlem, Community Engagement, & Vanguard Mailer - zip code specific 

C. Finance Report 

PA provided thorough review of the financial reports. 

DF and MC asked questions about the specific cash flow. 

D. Confirmation of next Board meeting 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Due to the Spring Break conflict, March 18th was agreed upon. 

E. Real Estate Update 

VI. New Business 

VII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:18 pm 



      

    

    
 

    
  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     	

 
  	

 
 

 
  	

 
 

 
 

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, March 25, 2019 

1 East 104" Street 5th Floor 
New York, NY 

MINUTES 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, March 25, 2019, at Capital Preparatory Harlem 
Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called to order 
at 6:40 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF)  
Maurice Coleman (MC) 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 
Rev. Morgan Thomas (MT) 

Others Present: 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Isaiah Brown (IB) 
Ramik Williams (RW) 
Dia Simms (DS) - via telephone 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) - via phone 
Tammy Cassile (TC) - via phone 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 
Jermaine Ottey (JO) 
Michael Dalton (MD) 

Four (4) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance throughout the meeting; therefore, there 
was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order 6:40 pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 
A motion to approve the agenda for the March 25, 2019 board meeting was made 
by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 
Ms. Duffie spoke about her concern about parents who are outside the school creating a 
threatening situation for scholars and the impact of adding scholars for enrollment purposes 
at the cost of a safe learning environment.  She advocated for implementing a safety plan. 

Ms. Hilliard stated that she has concerns about safety and was looking for a status update on 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

  	
 

 
 
 

  	
 	

  
 

the collaboration with Success Academy to talk about safety within the community.  She 
also wanted information on when a safety meeting would be scheduled in addition to the 
cyberbullying meeting that occurred during the prior month.  

Ms. Marcellus-Mansfield spoke to safety and security.  She explained that her son 
complains about fights in the school and does not feel safe on the street.  She described  
groups of parents waiting outside of the school.  Illuminators cannot also be security guards 
She argued that if parent comes to fight, the child should not be allowed to be in the school. 
She is also concerned about whether the school can accommodate the enrollment planned 
for next year and her desire to have a robust sports program in place for students, including 
her son.  

Mr. Mason stated that he wanted to advocate for 8th grade team and for his students.  He 
spoke about a specific situation where two students engaged in rough housing that escalated 
to involving law enforcement and an Illuminator was harmed. 

Mr. Clarke spoke about being injured by students and his concerns about the support 
needed. 

Ms. Wilkinson said that she has been a parent at the school from the beginning.  Her 
daughter has been selected for LaGuardia Performance Arts and is choosing Capital Prep.  
She is growing as a person and a scholar.  While the school is doing an okay, safety is a 
concern.  As a parent, she has developed her own plan.  LaGuardia HS has drugs and fights.  
It is a great school, but it has its faults.  It is not just Capital Prep.  We have to come 
together. 

Ms. Zayas indicated that there is a parent and a small group of kids who are the source of 
the issues.  The kids should not pay for the parents but it is causing a harm to the whole.  
The police said the same thing at the safety meeting.  The parents are fighting alongside the 
kids, as far away as New Rochelle.  She urged the school not to lose your good parents 
protecting bad ones. 

Dr. Perry thanked the staff and parents for coming to the meeting and said that the school 
shares the concerns.  He indicated that he knows that Capital Prep is not the only school or 
the only choice. Across the country, he sees that in the most successful schools, the faculty, 
parents, and administration work together to create a web.  Dr. Perry encouraged all to 
maintain an open a line of communication.  While a school cannot punish the child for the 
parent’s behavior, it can hold a child responsible for her own.  

IV. Approval of February 11, 2019 Board Minutes 
A motion to approve the minutes for the February 11, 2019 board meeting was made 
by SP, seconded by MT, and unanimously approved. 

V. Reports 
A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment, and recruiting) 

DJ reviewed the school data dashboard including academic growth, spoke about the safety 
meeting that was held, encouraged families to monitor scholar’s social media, snap chat, 
etc. and tailor who they engage with.  As a mother of a Capital Prep scholar, DJ understands 
the challenges. From the internet safety meeting, the school is looking at the creation of 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 	

 
  

 
 

  

 
 

positive school culture.  One event was Super Bold (4 hours and 100 girls) where special 
guests spoke to the girls about how to navigate technology and the importance of shutting it 
down. The 9th graders engaged in a conversation regarding the documentary, It’s a Hard 
Truth Ain’t It, regarding incarceration, and Mr Howard brought in a special guest, Josh 
Johnson, to discuss his life story as a tap dancer and character development. 

Jheri Hardaway spoke about the positive parking lot instituted for scholars that guests may 
have noticed on the way into the school for the meeting. 

DJ highlighted upcoming events like testing, the spelling bee, and the silent art show. 

B. Finance Report 
The Board received the financial report from PA. 

C. Confirmation of next Board meeting on April 8, 2019 

VI. New Business 
There was no new business. 

VII. Adjournment 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 pm was made by SP, seconded by MT and 
unanimously approved. 



 

  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
  

                  
     

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

March 25, 2019 
Minutes 

Trustees Present: Derek Ferguson, Maurice Coleman, Georgiette Morgan-Thomas, Stephen 
Perry 

Trustees Absent: Iyanla Vanzant 

Four (4) of the Five (5) seated Trustees were in attendance in person and present throughout the meeting, 
which constituted the required three-fourths (3/4ths) attendance required for the transaction of business 
at this special meeting. 

Derek Ferguson called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

Proposed Merger of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School with and into Capital 
Preparatory Bronx Charter School 

Mr. Ferguson requested that Cliff S. Schneider, Esq., of Cohen Schneider Law, P.C., (legal 
counsel for the School) lead a discussion on the mechanics of the merger process and its ultimate 
outcome upon approval.  A brief discussion ensued.  Mr. Schneider then asked if everyone had 
received and read all of the merger documents distributed by Mr. Schneider’s partner Susan 
Briggs of Cohen Schneider Law, P.C. to each Trustee prior to the meeting. All Board members 
advised that they had so received the documents.  

The Resolutions (attached hereto as Exhibit A) approving the Agreement and Plan of 
Merger and Certificate of Merger were presented to the Board. The Board reviewed the text of 
the Resolutions and a brief discussion ensued.  The Request for Merger previously submitted to 
the SUNY Board of Trustees (attached hereto as Exhibit B) and the Petition for Merger 
(Attached hereto as Exhibit C) were also presented to the Board and a brief discussion ensued. 

A Motion was made by Mr. Coleman to i) approve the Resolutions and the Agreement 
and Plan of Merger and the Certificate of Merger; ii) ratify the Request for Merger previously 
submitted to the SUNY Board of Trustees; and iii) approve the Petition for Merger and seconded 
by Dr. Perry and unanimously approved. 

Dr. Perry made a motion to adjourn the Special Meeting. Mr. Coleman seconded the 
motion and it was unanimously approved. The Special Meeting was adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
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Exhibit A 

Resolutions 

See attached. 
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Exhibit B 

Request for Merger 

See attached. 

{00040088.1} 



 

  

  
 

   
 

  
 

Exhibit C 

Petition for Merger 

See attached. 
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The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, April 8, 2019 

1 East 104" Street 5th Floor 
New York, NY 

MINUTES 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, April 8, 2019, at Capital Preparatory Harlem 
Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called to order 
at 6:45 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF)  
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) 
Rev. Morgan Thomas (MT) 

Trustees Not Present: 
Iyanla Vanzant (IV) - Not Present 
Maurice Coleman (MC) - Not Present 

Others Present: 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Dia Simms (DS) 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) via video 
Rich Beganski (RB) 
Jermaine Ottey (JO) 
Michael Dalton (MD) 
Tammy Cassile (TC) 

Three (3) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance throughout the meeting; therefore, there 
was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order at 6:45 pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 
A motion to approve the agenda for the April 8, 2019 board meeting was made 
by DF, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 
There was no public comment. 

IV. Approval of March 25, 2019 Board Minutes 



 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  	

 	
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

 

A motion to approve the minutes for the March 25, 2019 board meeting was made 
by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

V. Approval of March 25, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes 
A motion to approve the minutes for the March 25, 2019 Special Board meeting was made 
by DF, seconded by MT, and unanimously approved. 

VI. Reports 
A. School Update (events, updates, safety/security, enrollment, and recruiting) 

DJ reported that it had been an exciting 2 weeks. ELA testing 2 days away from being 
complete. She is proud of the kids. There was a solid testing environment. Also, the lottery 
was pulled this week. There are opportunities to strengthen the process, and there is a plan 
in place to continue communication through August. Capital Prep placed 300 personal calls. 
April 13th is an open house with uniform fittings, tours, and meeting staff.  The leadership 
will also orient new registrants to be sure scholars have a clear understanding of climate and 
expectations. On school safety/climate, the school instituted peer mediation, staff PD on 
strategies and techniques for “self de-escalation.” More to come in the next coming weeks, 
as well as continued communication.  Madeleine Sackler reached back out to participate in 
a documentary on our students to allow them to be part of the process from the director’s 
lens. More details to come. 

RC reported that the school pulled 370 seats - 120-6th grade, 70-7th grade, 60-8th grade, 
60-9th grade, and 60-10th grade. The school rescinded applications of those who did not 
respond by 3pm today. So far, 182 accepted.  

SP explained that first we sent weekly emails on the school - this is important because there 
was greater awareness when we called. Next, we moved up the pull date, as well as the 
enrollment day to close the deal. We are also instilling buddy system to engage families 
with existing students and offering gift cards for uniforms. 

MT asks for clarification on numbers and RC stated that she would update. 

DF clarifies # on waitlist available to pull from and that the available seats makes an 
assumption on retention. 

SP explains that the school over-accepted and pulled early and following up to ensure the 
new students come the first day. 

DF asked that the report indicated the change from prior month and explanation notes to 
next report on recruitment. 

MT questions 9th grade enrollment numbers, and DF explained greater opportunity for 
withdrawal to go to a 4 year high school.  DC explained the letter that comes from NY DOE 
district asking them to enroll in high school because the ability for them to continue in CPH 
Middle to High is not reported in their system. 

RC says that she will send letters by the end of the week explaining the issue. 

Ms. Duffie states that parents think they have no choice when they get the letter and 
suggests starting communication earlier on with the middle school children. 



 
  

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

 	
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 

SP asks DJ to speak to the transition meeting we have from Middle school to High School 

DS commented about a student called to check for himself that he will be pulled from 
waitlist with excitement. 

B. Cohort Data Review 
MD explains his role and what he has been studying regarding scores.  He presented the 
cohort data for Harlem, which was a deep dive into student performance showing that 
proficiency levels alone do not tell the story. 
DF asked that MD add the “n” total # of students for the lines, missing a test score (please 
add dates to clarify), and keep colors consistent across slides. 
DF asked if can we get prior info on MAP scores from other schools, and MD replied that 
we cannot; we are at the mercy of state assessments. 
DF asked that we pull these findings out in a simple way to share out to funders and 
colleagues. 
DS agreed that we need these data points to share. 

MT asked what the school is doing around coding with our students? 
DJ explained that  8th grade has a robotics class and actively participate. Separately ATT 
has a robotic arm program we are trying to engage them on. 
MT stated that Google has reached out with a program. I have asked them what they can do 
for our students. I have a contact. Will ask for next steps on the program. 

C. Finance Report 
PA presents the financial reports. 
MT asked what were the 8 positions that were eliminated, and PA answered junior 
illuminators & special education. 

D. Confirmation of next Board meeting May 13, 2019 
DF confirmed that the next meeting is May 13, 2019. 

Ms. Duffie - First let me say thank you, and I have always cared.  I believe that the village 
has to raise the community. My issue is that we are consistently reporting the same issues, 
and we keep trying to build, and there are specific people that are ruining it for the broader 
population. There are things that are done well, and things we need to change. But I am here 
because I care about the kids and the school. 

MT indicated that as a trustee, I have to take responsibility for your concerns and see what 
can be done to improve. I have begin to reach out to local community members to do some 
volunteer work in the school. How can we handle some of the problems that other schools 
face, but in a different way. I have identified 6 individuals to volunteer. 

SP said that you will find no bigger critic of Capital Prep than me. My challenge is always 
trying to present the totality of the experience. Even the numbers that we have presented, 
people wouldn’t believe the growth rates we have achieved. I can’t show you everything we 
are doing and who we are speaking to, like the young women I just mentored today through 
issues, who shook hands at the end. There are things that other schools do what we will not 
do. We will not turn Capital Prep into a police state. We need more social workers, not 
police. 



 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

	
  

 

Ms. Duffie- Yes I agree- my daughter did the prison pipeline film; I do not advocate that. 
However, I do think we need to get some of our parents the life skills to help collaborate 
toward the solutions versus being the problem. 

SP said we have a moral call. Most folks would say if they don’t know how to act, get rid of 
them, but that’s not what we do. Our challenge is to see the beauty when when people only 
see ugly. 

DF stated that despite us not being able to have a back and forth dialogue, we want you to 
know that we hear you and we care about your concerns. Additionally, we want you to 
know we need you. We cannot do this alone. We all need to work collectively; we have 
issues that are bigger than all of us that we must tackle together. I look back to our learner 
expectations as getting back to our fundamentals. Those are the core DNA for us to reflect 
upon to be successful. Our biggest challenges in this role - Lack of belief and people writing 
us off. We are trying to create a new paradigm. I’ve been grappling with how do we deal 
with the kids who have problems where most schools would write them off. We are going 
against a whole system that is working against the kids. 

VII. New Business 
No new business 

VIII. Adjournment 
A motion to adjourn was made at 8:08 pm by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously 
approved. 



      

    

    
 

    
  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

     	
 

  	
 

 
 

  	
 

  
 

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Monday, May 23, 2019 

1 East 104" Street 5th Floor 
New York, NY 

MINUTES 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter 
School (the “School”) was held on Monday, May 23, 2019, at Capital Preparatory Harlem 
Charter School, 1 East 104th Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called to order 
at 6:43 p.m. 

Trustees Present: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) - present 
Maurice Coleman (MC) - electronic participation 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) - present 
Rev. Morgan Thomas (MT) - arrived 7:10 pm 

Others Present: 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Isaiah Brown (IB) 
Ramik Williams (RW) 
Dia Simms (DS) 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 
Jermaine Ottey (JO) 
Michael Dalton (MD) 
Reginald Richardson (RR) 

Three (3) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance during the meeting. There was a quorum 
for the transaction of business at the meeting.  One member participated electronically. 

I. Call to order 6:43 pm 

II. Adoption of Agenda 
A motion to approve the agenda for the May 23, 2019 board meeting was made 
by SP, seconded by MC, and unanimously approved. 

III. Public Comments 
Ms. Duffie explained that she has been in attendance for the last 4 months regarding the 
safety of scholars.  Since the last meeting, the bullying has ceased.  The scholars took 
responsibility to end it.  However, Ms. Duffie is concerned that the bullying policy 
described in the handbook is not being fully implemented. 

Ms. Elmore (new parent) spoke to the event for new parents which she attended after 
getting the call that her daughter was accepted.  Another event is scheduled for June 1st.  



 
 

 
 

  	
 

 
 

  	
 	

 
    

 
   

 
  
  
  
  
   

 
    

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
  
  
  
   

 
 

 
 	

 
 

 
 	

 
    

 
 

 
 

 

She stated: “This is the right school for my kid.  I know that you are new.  There are still 
things to be worked out.  I love the discipline.”  She recommended that the school put itself 
out there in social media and focus more on Harlem as the current focus is more Harbor.  

IV. Approval of April 8, 2019 Board Minutes 
A motion to approve the minutes for the April 8, 2019 board meeting was made 
by MC, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

V. Reports 
A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment, and recruiting) 

Since the last meeting: 
● Math - state testing - the school testing environment was strong and testing went 

well. 
● Ed Choice Visit - educators throughout the country came to visit the schools.  Our 

students enjoyed the visit and the opportunity to interact with individuals from other 
parts of the country. 

● To Kill a Mockingbird 
● Democracy Now 
● Library Visits 
● New Student Enrollment Event 
● Principal Candidate Introduction - some students are nervous about change, but the 

process of meeting the candidates will make the transition easier. 
● First Harlem Graduate - Ms. Jones’ son graduated from high school and will be 

attending Wagner.  He made it with the support of the the Capital Prep family and 
Dr. Perry in specific. 

Upcoming Events: 
5/28 - Science Test 
6/1 - New Student Enrollment Event - the school is reaching out to students who have not 
submitted their paperwork and to those students who have not indicated whether they will 
be returning. 
6/6 - Sports Banquet 
6/18 - SJP Fair 
6/19 - Book Release Event 
6/19 - Blazer Ceremony - this is a promotion ceremony, not a graduation.  It is for the 
students who will be transitioning from 8th to 9th grade within Capital Prep.  It is a 
wonderful and moving event. 

B. Finance Report 
The Board received the financial report from PA through March 31, 2019.  PA reviewed the 
report in detail. 

C. Confirmation of next Board meeting on June 10, 2019 

VI. New Business 
SP introduced Mr. Richardson and the process to select him.  SP also thanked Ms. Jones for 
her service and commitment and expressed his excitement about having her join the CPS 
team as the Executive Director of Teaching and Learning. 

Mr. Richardson stated that it is a dream to work with this Capital Prep Family; he said that 



 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

he is ready to move forward in this vision.  Mr. Richardson has always been struck by Dr. 
Perry’s courage to say what is real, a model where our students saw success, and a school 
founded in social justice.  The concept is that all students will be able to go to a four year 
college.  Mr. Richardson said that this position will be the highlight of his career. 
He indicated that he is the kids that Capital Prep is serving.  He had little to no money 
growing up.  He hopes to build upon the phoneonal work that the team has done.  His 
expertise is on teaching and learning.  He expressed his thanks for trusting him and taking a 
chance on him.  He promised that he would work tirelessly. 

Approval of appointment of Reginald Richardson, effective June 3, 2019, with a 
transition period with Principal Jones.  Effective July 1, 2019, Richardson will be 
the principal of Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School. 

A motion to approve the appointment of Reginald Richardson was made 
by SP, seconded by MT, and unanimously approved. 

VII. Adjournment 
A motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:23 pm was made by SP, seconded by MT and 
unanimously approved. 



 

 

      
    

       
   

  
 

                 
                

              
 

  
     

      
      

 
  

   
    

   
   

   
   

   
    

   
   

   
   

 
                

             

 

   

         

 

   
                  

  
 

           
 

                  
     

 

The Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

1 East 104" Street 4th floor 
New York, NY 

6:30 p.m. 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Capital Prep Charter Schools NY (the “School”) 
was held on Monday, June 10, 2019, at Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School, 1 East 104th 
Street, New York, NY 10029. The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Trustees: 
Derek Ferguson (DF) - present 
Dr. Steve Perry (SP) - present 
Reverend Morgan Thomas (MT) - present 

Others Present: 
Danita Jones (DJ) 
Paula Altieri (PA) 
Rich Beganski (RB) 
Tammy Cassile (TC) 
Reginald Richardson (RR) 
Isaiah Brown (IB) 
Rachelly Crime (RC) 
Jill Cutler Hodgman (JCH) 
Dolores Concepcion (DC) 
Michael Dalton (MD) 
Jermaine Ottey (JO) 
Cliff Schneider (CS) 

Three (3) of the five (5) trustees were in attendance and were present throughout the meeting; 
therefore, there was a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting. 

I. Call to order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. Adoption of Agenda 
A motion to approve the agenda for the board meeting was made by MT, seconded by SP, and 
unanimously approved. 

III. Approval of the Minutes from the May 23, 2019 Board Meeting 

A motion to approve the minutes from the May 23, 2019 board meeting was made by MT, seconded 
by SP, and unanimously approved. 



 

  

                   
                  
                 

                   
  

 

                   
                

                  
                      

                
                   

                 
                       
                   

 

 

                   

 

                    
                       

                    
                    
                    

 

 

       
 

     
                   

          
                        
 

  
     
          
       
    
     
    

         

IV. Public Comments 

Arlene Gonzalez has a daughter who is currently in the 8th grade and has been in the school since 
6th grade. Ms. Gonzalez had a meeting with Dr. Perry, Mr. Richardson, Ms. Jones, and Mr. Brown. 
We want our kids to have a full graduation ceremony. We presented options, but they were 
declined. The school is going to acknowledge the kids by having them stand but not as a graduation 
for all. 

Starr Grant has been with the school since her daughter was in 6th grade. Ms. Grant provided the 
Board Chair with a copy of a petition with 545 signatures when they entered the building 
downstairs. On May 24, 2019, the school sent a communication that the Blazer Ceremony is like 
cap and gown ceremony. The email said it was for all. All the kids have dealt with challenges with 
academics, bullying, teacher staff retention issues; these are the kind of issues that are expected for 
a new school in Harlem. All students should be recognized at the Blazer Ceremony. It is a 
disservice to them to treat those who are not returning differently. All the students worked very 
hard at this school. My child is not returning to the school. Ms. Grant asked that the Board look at 
this. She encouraged the Board to speak to the kids to learn how they feel about not celebrating 
together. 

Denise Page stated that she felt that it is okay. It is the rule of the school. 

Unisha Duffie stated that she did not intend to speak tonight but wants to now. She said that she 
has an incoming 7th grader. She went to a blazer ceremony in the past. The kids are recognized. It 
is a transition. It is not a completion certificate. Returning students take off the sweater and put on 
the blazer. Individual names are not called. They do acknowledge all the children. The school says 
that all students are part of the capital prep family. It is for the kids who are returning. 

V. Reports/Updates 

A. School Update (events, updates, enrollment, and recruiting) 

Since the last Board meeting 

5/28 - 8th grade science testing - finished the testing. We are looking forward to positive outcomes. 
6/1 - New student enrollment - big turnout for enrollment. 
6/10 - 13 - MAP Testing - kids felt good about it. 12-20 points of growth. The increase is from August to 
now. 
Upcoming Events 

6/13 - Spring Sports Banquet 
6/18 - 8th grade SJP Fair - scholars can shine. 
6/19 - 9th grade book release 

6/19 - Blazer Ceremony 

6/20 - MAP Rewards Trip 

6/21 - Field Day 

Regents Exams (last two weeks of the school year) 



 

          
            

 
        

                  
 

 
     

            
 

  

          
 

                     
                  

          
 

              
                
       
                  
                       
               

       
                    
                    

 
 

              
        

 
                  

             
 

                 
 

                  
  

 
           

 
                 
     

 

 

MD - The 12 to 23 points growth is outstanding. 
IB - The 6th grade basketball team won the Charter School Conference. 

B. Confirmation of next Board meeting July 8, 2019 
DF - SUNY approved the merger today; it will be a combined meeting next month with Capital Prep 
Bronx. 

C. Finance Report & Budget Presentation 

PA - provided the finance report for month end April 30, 2019. 

VI. New Business 

A. Approval of the 2019-2020 Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School Budget. 

PA: Review of the budget. We built the budget based on 500 students including a cushion. We are 
basing it on an 86% return rate and current registered students totaling 453 students. We used the 
new rate is the NYC to build the revenue assumptions. 

DF - I have a question on capital. Where is the secondary reserve? 
PA - We have a leasehold of 310, which includes building improvements - painting or renovating. 
We are taking over some new space. 
RB - We are taking five rooms on the 3rd floor and some rooms on the 6th floor. 
SP - We want to refresh the space. We want to have specific themes so that it feels like our building. 
DF - The 250K should be on a separate line for the facility down payment. 
MT- What is the free lunch update? 
RC - We started with phone calls and asked families to come in. For new families, we have included 
the form to be completed. I suggest that we use the NYC application along with ours using the HRA 
system. 

A motion to approve the 2019-2020 Capital Preparatory Harlem Charter School Budget was made 
by MT, seconded by SP, and unanimously approved. 

B. Approval of 36 month lease with Konica Minolta for 1 black & white and 1 color high volume 
copiers. For total cost of $31,539 over the three year term. 

RC - We are ending relationship with TGI. This is a new lease (color and B&W). 

A motion to approve the 36 month Konica Minolta lease was made by MT, seconded by SP, and 
unanimously approved. 

C. Approval of contract for $79,000 furniture order to accommodate 575 students. 

A motion to approve the $79,000 furniture order after bids are received was made by MT, seconded 
by SP, and unanimously approved. 

VII. Adjournment 



 

 

                  A motion to adjourn at 7:08 p.m. was made by SP, seconded by MT, and unanimously approved. 




